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I. INTRODUCTION 

Respondent Richard Vu Nguyen (“Respondent” or “Nguyen”) has not responded to the 

Commission’s Order Instituting Proceedings (“OIP”) nor has he complied with this Court’s 

ensuing Order to Show Cause why he should not be defaulted.  In accordance with that May 4, 

2022 Order to Show Cause, the Division of Enforcement (“Division”) hereby moves for the 

entry, by default, of findings and the imposition of remedial sanctions against respondent 

Nguyen.  Based upon the OIP’s allegations, which are now deemed true, as well as the 

allegations deemed true in the SEC’s district court action, the Commission should determine that 

a permanent bar against Nguyen is appropriate and in the public interest under Section 203(f) of 

the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (“Adviser’s Act”). 

II. BACKGROUND 

The Commission issued the OIP on September 30, 2021.  See OIP, Adviser Act Rel. No. 

5882 (Sept. 30, 2021).  The Division successfully served the OIP upon Respondent on March 24, 

2022.  See Division of Enforcement’s Final Status Report Concerning Service of OIP (Mar. 24, 

2022).  Respondent never filed an answer to the OIP.  On May 4, 2022, the Commission issued 

an Order to Show Cause in which it ordered Respondent to explain why he should not be deemed 

in default and why these proceedings should not be determined against him due to his failure to 

file an answer or to otherwise defend against these proceedings.  See Order to Show Cause, 

Adviser Act Rel. No. 6014 (May 4, 2022).  Specifically, the Commission ordered Respondent to 

address the reasons for his failure to timely file an answer and to include a proposed answer in 

the event the Commission decided not to enter a default against him.  Id. at 1.  The Order to 

Show Cause ordered Respondent to do this by May 18, 2022, and gave the Division until June 

15, 2022, to move for entry of an order of default and the imposition of remedial sanctions, if 

Respondent failed to comply.  Id. at 2.  Respondent has not complied with the Commission’s 
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Order to Show Cause within the time allowed. 

As alleged in the OIP, the Commission filed a civil action entitled Securities and 

Exchange Commission v. Richard Vu Nguyen, et al., Civil Action Number 8:19-cv-01174-SVW-

KES, in the United States District Court for the Central District of California.  See Ex. A 

(Complaint).  The Commission’s Complaint alleged that, from February 2018 through March 

2019, Respondent and his company, NTV Financial Group, Inc. (“NTV Financial”), raised about 

$2.4 million from approximately 80 investors who invested in the “Nguyen Tran Le Fund.”  See 

OIP at ¶ II(2).  Respondent lured these investors by falsely claiming he could guarantee investors 

“no loss” of their principal investment and by falsely claiming that Respondent had worked at 

Goldman Sachs as a fund manager whose accounts never suffered any losses.  Id.  However, 

investors in the Nguyen Tran Le Fund did suffer significant losses, in part, because Respondent 

misappropriated approximately $600,000, spending a good portion of the money on himself and 

his girlfriend, relief defendant Mai Do.  Id. 

The Complaint further alleges that Respondent had some clients open brokerage 

accounts, fund the accounts with at least $50,000, and then give Respondent their account’s 

username and password so he could trade securities, principally options, in those accounts for the 

clients.  See OIP at ¶ II(3).  For managing these accounts, NTV Financial and Respondent were 

to receive 50% of the trading profits, while the clients were solely responsible for the trading 

losses.  NTV Financial and Respondent managed the accounts of at least 30 clients who 

deposited approximately $1.9 million into the accounts.  Id.  The Complaint alleges that, by the 

end of March 2019, many clients had suffered losses totaling $570,000.  Id. 

The OIP alleges that, on February 11, 2020, the district court entered a judgment against 
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Respondent.1  See  OIP at ¶ II(1).  The judgment permanently enjoined Respondent from future 

violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”), Section 10(b) of the 

Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, and Sections 

206(1), 206(2) and 206(4) of the Adviser’s Act and Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder.  Id.  The judgment 

was entered based on Respondent’s consent and the allegations in the complaint against him 

were deemed true.  See Ex. B (Consent Judgment). 

III. ARGUMENT 

A. Section 203(f) Relief Is Appropriate Based on Nguyen’s Conduct and Default 

Rule 220(f) of the Commission’s Rules of Practice provides that if a “respondent fails to 

file an answer … within the time provided, such person may be deemed in default pursuant to 

Rule 155(a).”  17 C.F.R. § 201.220(f).  In turn, Rule 155(a) of the Commission’s Rules of 

Practice allows the Commission to “determine the proceedings against [a respondent] upon 

consideration of the record, including the order instituting the proceedings, the allegations of 

which may be deemed to be true.”  17 C.F.R. § 201.155(a). 

On May 4, 2022, the Commission issued the Order to Show Cause finding that Respondent 

failed to respond to the OIP within the specified 20 days of service of the OIP.  The Order to Show 

Cause gave Respondent until May 18, 2022, to submit a response and advised him that failure to 

do so could result in him being deemed in default and the proceedings determined against him.  

The Division has not received any response from Respondent, and therefore moves for findings 

and remedies by default in accordance with the deadline specified in the Order to Show Cause. 

The Commission has the authority to impose remedial sanctions under Section 203(f) 

                                                 
1 The date of the judgment was actually February 13, 2020, and the date alleged in the OIP was slightly 
incorrect. 
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when a respondent is the subject of a permanent court injunction prohibiting conduct associated 

with the purchase or sale of a security or from performing certain actions in connection with the 

securities industry.  15 U.S.C. § 80b-3(e)(4).  As alleged in the OIP, the facts of which are 

deemed true upon Respondent’s default, the district court entered injunctions in February 2021 

against Respondent, prohibiting him from future violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act, 

Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, and Sections 206(1), 206(2) and 

206(4) of the Adviser’s Act and Rule 206(4)-8 thereunder.  Those injunctions constitute a basis 

for remedial relief under Section 203(f) against Respondent. 

Respondent was also an investment adviser.  Section 202(a)(11) of the Advisers Act 

defines an “investment adviser” to include any person who, for compensation, engages in the 

business of advising others as to the value of securities or as to the advisability of investing in, 

purchasing, or selling securities.  15 U.S.C. § 80b-2(a)(11).  The OIP alleges that, from 2018 

through March 2019, Respondent raised about $2.4 million from approximately 80 investors by 

telling them to invest in the Nguyen Tran Le Fund, falsely claiming they would not suffer any 

loss of their principal investment and by falsely claiming he had managed funds for Goldman 

Sachs.  The OIP further alleges that Respondent had clients open brokerage accounts so that he 

could trade options on their behalf in exchange for 50% of the profits.  The fact that Nguyen held 

himself out as an investment advisor and received money from investment accounts under his 

control establishes he was in the business of being an investment adviser and received 

compensation as such.  See In the Matter of Alexander v. Stein, Release No. IA – 1497, 59 S.E.C. 

Docket 1115, 1995 WL 358127 (June 8, 1995).  The Division has thus established the propriety 

of remedial action against Respondent under Section 203(f).   

B. The Commission Should Impose a Permanent Bar against Nguyen 

Whether an administrative sanction based upon an injunction is in the public interest 
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turns on the egregiousness of the respondent’s actions, the isolated or recurrent nature of the 

infraction, the degree of scienter involved, the sincerity of the respondent’s assurances against 

future violations, recognition of the wrongful conduct, and the likelihood that the respondent’s 

occupation will present future opportunities for violations.  See Steadman v. SEC, 603 F.2d 1126, 

1140 (5th Cir. 1979), aff’d on other grounds, 450 U.S. 91 (1981); In re Vladimir Boris Bugarski, 

No. 3-14496, 2012 WL 1377357, at *4 (Commission Op. April 20, 2012).  The Commission also 

considers whether the sanction will have a deterrent effect.  Id.  “[N]o one factor is dispositive.”  

In re Michael C. Pattison, CPA, No. 3-14323, 2012 WL 4320146, at *8 (Commission Op. Sept. 

20, 2012); In re ZPR Investment Management, Inc., No. 3-15263, 2015 WL 6575683, at *27 

(Commission Op. Oct. 30, 2015) (inquiry into the public interest is “flexible”).   

The record before the Commission demonstrates that Respondent’s conduct was 

egregious, recurrent, and involved a high degree of scienter.  Respondent’s conduct was 

egregious because the injunctions pertain to antifraud violations.  The Commission has held that 

“[v]iolations involving the antifraud provisions of the federal securities laws are especially 

serious and merit the severest of sanctions.”  Vinay Kumar Nevatia, Init. Dec. Rel. No. 1021, 

2016 WL 3162186, at *5 (June 7, 2016), citing Peter Siris, Exchange Act Release No. 71068, 

2013 SEC LEXIS 3924, at *23 (Dec. 12, 2013), pet. denied, 773 F.3d 89 (D.C. Cir. 2014); 

accord Eichler, 2016 WL 4035559, at *6 (“The Commission considers an antifraud injunction to 

be especially serious and to subject a respondent to the severest of sanctions…Indeed, from 1995 

to the present, there have been over thirty-five litigated follow-on proceedings based on antifraud 

injunctions in which the Commission issued opinions, and all of the respondents were 

barred…”), internal citations omitted.   

Moreover, Respondent’s conduct was recurrent —it lasted over a year and lured in 
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approximately 80 different investors.  See, e.g., Gordon Brent Pierce, Securities Act Release No. 

9555, 2014 SEC LEXIS 839, at *84 (Mar. 7, 2014) (describing misconduct that occurred over an 

eight month period as “recurrent and long-lasting”).   

Next, the Commission should find Respondent acted with a high degree of scienter 

because he knowingly lied to investors, claiming he could guarantee they would suffer no losses 

investing in highly risky options and claiming he had previously worked as a fund manager at 

Goldman Sachs.  To make matters worse, Respondent misappropriated approximately $600,000 

from investors after luring them into his scheme, spending a large portion of the money on 

himself and his girlfriend.  All of this supports a finding that Respondent acted with a high degree 

of scienter.  See SEC v. Universal Express, Inc., 475 F. Supp. 2d 412, 424 (S.D.N.Y. 2007) 

(“Representing information as true while knowing it is not, recklessly misstating information, or 

asserting an opinion on grounds so flimsy as to belie any genuine belief in its truth, are all 

circumstances sufficient to support a conclusion of scienter”); In the Matter of Lawrence Allen 

DeShetler, Investment Advisers Act Release No. 5411, Commission Opinion at 4 (Admin. Proc. 

File No. 3-18854 Nov. 21, 2019) (finding analogous conduct of deceiving investors and 

misappropriating funds to be egregious and recurrent conduct that warranted permanent bar).   

Finally, Respondent has not offered the Commission any assurances against future 

violations or recognized the wrongfulness of his conduct, and there is likelihood he will engage 

in similar violations in the future.  Respondent’s conduct in this proceeding – failing to respond 

in any respect to an order of the Commission, as well as a show cause directive to explain 

himself – demonstrates that there is no assurance against future violations.  Id. at 5.  And 

although Respondent consented to the judgment entered against him, it was a bifurcated consent 

so that Respondent could still dispute the amount of money he should be required to pay the 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

RICHARD VU NGUYEN, A/K/A 
NGUYEN THANH VU, and NTV 
FINANCIAL GROUP, INC., 

Defendants, 

and 

MAI DO, 

Relief Defendant. 

Case No. 8:19-cv-01174-SVW-KES 

JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT 
RICHARD VU NGUYEN 
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JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT RICHARD VU NGUYEN

The Securities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint and 

Defendant Richard Vu Nguyen having entered a general appearance; consented to 

the Court’s jurisdiction over Defendant and the subject matter of this action; 

consented to entry of this Judgment without admitting or denying the allegations of 

the Complaint (except as to jurisdiction and except as otherwise provided herein in 

paragraph VII); waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; and waived any 

right to appeal from this Judgment: 

I. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, 

Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) [15 

U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], 

by using any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, or of the mails, or 

of any facility of any national securities exchange, in connection with the purchase 

or sale of any security: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a

material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in the

light of the circumstances under which they were made, not

misleading; or

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or

would operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as 

provided in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also 

binds the following who receive actual notice of this Judgment by personal service 

or otherwise:  (a) Defendant’s officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; 
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and (b) other persons in active concert or participation with Defendant or with 

anyone described in (a). 

II. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED 

that Defendant is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 17(a) 

of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)] in the 

offer or sale of any security by the use of any means or instruments of 

transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the mails, 

directly or indirectly: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a

material fact or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which

they were made, not misleading; or

(c) to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which

operates or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as 

provided in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also 

binds the following who receive actual notice of this Judgment by personal service 

or otherwise:  (a) Defendant’s officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; 

and (b) other persons in active concert or participation with Defendant or with 

anyone described in (a). 

III. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, while 

acting as an investment adviser, Sections 206(1) and (2) of the Investment 

Advisers Act of 1940 (“Advisers Act”) [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1) and (2)] by using 
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the mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce: 

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud any client or

prospective client; or

(b) to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which

operates as a fraud or deceit upon any client or prospective client.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as 

provided in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also 

binds the following who receive actual notice of this Judgment by personal service 

or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys; 

and (b) other persons in active concert or participation with Defendant or with 

anyone described in (a). 

IV. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant 

is permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, while 

acting as an investment adviser to a pooled investment vehicle, directly or 

indirectly, Section 206(4) of the Adviser Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(4)] and Rule 

206(4)-8 promulgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-8], by using the mails or 

means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce: 

(a) to make untrue statements of material fact or omit to state a

material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of 

the circumstances under which there were made, not misleading, to any 

investor or prospective investor in the pooled investment vehicle; or 

(b) to engage in acts, practices, or courses of business that are

fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative with respect to any investor or 

prospective investor in the pooled investment vehicle. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, as 

provided in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also 
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binds the following who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by personal 

service or otherwise: (a) Defendant’s officers, agents, servants, employees, and 

attorneys; and (b) other persons in active concert or participation with Defendant 

or with anyone described in (a). 

V. 

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED 

that upon motion of the Commission, the Court shall determine whether it is 

appropriate to:  (1) permanently restrain and enjoin Defendant from directly or 

indirectly, including through any entity he owns or controls, accessing any 

securities brokerage account of any third-party, including doing so with the 

consent of the account holder (the “conduct-based injunction”), and (2) order 

Defendant to pay disgorgement of ill-gotten gains, prejudgment interest thereon, 

and a civil penalty pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 

§ 77t(d)] and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3)] and

Section 209(e) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-9(e)].  If disgorgement is

ordered, Defendant shall pay prejudgment interest thereon, calculated from

February 2018, based on the rate of interest used by the Internal Revenue Service

for the underpayment of federal income tax as set forth in 26 U.S.C. § 6621(a)(2).

In connection with the Commission’s motion for disgorgement and/or civil

penalties, and at any hearing held on such a motion: (a) Defendant will be

precluded from arguing that he did not violate the federal securities laws as alleged

in the Complaint; (b) Defendant may not challenge the validity of the Consent or

this Judgment; (c) solely for the purposes of such motion, the allegations of the

Complaint shall be accepted as and deemed true by the Court; and (d) the Court

may determine the issues raised in the motion on the basis of affidavits,

declarations, excerpts of sworn deposition or investigative testimony, and

documentary evidence, without regard to the standards for summary judgment
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